
 

Page 1 of 3 

Notice of Meeting 
 

Surrey Local Outbreak 
Engagement Board 
 

 
Date & time Place Contact 
Thursday, 15 April 
2021  
at 2.00 pm 

REMOTE 
 

Amelia Christopher 
Tel 020 8213 2838 
amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk 
 

 

Please note that due to the COVID-19 situation this meeting will 
take place remotely. 
 
Please be aware that a link to view a live recording of the meeting 
will be available on the Surrey Local Outbreak Engagement Board page  
on the Surrey County Council website. This page can be accessed by  
following the link below: 
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=820&Year=0 
 
If you have any queries relating to accessing this agenda please email  
amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Board Members 
 
Joanna Killian                                     Chief Executive, Surrey County Council 
Mr Tim Oliver                                     Leader of Surrey County Council  
Ruth Hutchinson                         Director of Public Health, Surrey County Council 
Mrs Sinead Mooney (Chairman)         Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care, Public Health and Domestic  
                                                 Abuse, Surrey County Council 
Mrs Mary Lewis                         Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & Families, Surrey  
                                                            County Council 
Karen Brimacombe                         Chief Executive, Mole Valley District Council 
Annie Righton                                     Strategic Director, Waverley Borough Council                                                                                                 
Cllr Mark Brunt (Vice-Chairman)  Leader of the Council, Reigate & Banstead Borough Council 
Cllr Stuart Selleck                          Leader of the Council, Elmbridge Borough Council 
Dr Charlotte Canniff                          Clinical Chair, Surrey Heartlands Clinical Commissioning Group 
Sue Sjuve                                      Chair, Royal Surrey NHS Foundation Trust 
Dr Pramit Patel                          Lead Primary Care Network (PCN), Clinical Director Primary Care …                 
…                                                         Networks - Surrey Heartlands  
Gavin Stephens                          Chief Constable of Surrey Police 
David Munro                                        Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner 
Andrew Lloyd                                      Independent Chair, Frimley Health and Care Integrated Care System   
Louise Punter                                      Chief Executive of Surrey Chambers of Commerce  

 
 
 

We’re on Twitter: 
@SCCdemocracy 

mailto:amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=820&Year=0
mailto:amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk


 
Page 2 of 3 

 
PART 1 

IN PUBLIC 
 

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 18 FEBRUARY 2021 
 
To agree the minutes of the previous meeting. 
 

(Pages 5 
- 24) 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter 
 
(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or 
(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of any 
item(s) of business being considered at this meeting 
 
NOTES: 
 

 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item 
where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest 

 As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any interest, of 
which the Member is aware, that relates to the Member’s spouse or 
civil partner (or any person with whom the Member is living as a 
spouse or civil partner) 

 Members with a significant personal interest may participate in the 
discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest could be 
reasonably regarded as prejudicial. 

 

 

4  QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 
a  Members' Questions 
 

The deadline for Member’s questions is 12pm four working days 
before the meeting (9 April 2021). 

 
b  Public Questions 
 

The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting 
(8 April 2021). 

 
c  Petitions 
 

The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting. No 
petitions have been received. 

 

 

5  COVID-19 SURVEILLANCE UPDATE 
 
A verbal update is to be provided on the surveillance of the data and 
intelligence concerning COVID-19. 
 
 

 



 
Page 3 of 3 

6  COVID-19 COMMUNICATIONS PLAN UPDATE 
 
A communications and engagement strategy has been developed to 
support the Surrey Local Outbreak Control Plan. The Communications 
Plan has evolved as more has been learnt about our public health 
response to the virus and this report provides the latest update on 
communications activity including Operation Eagle.  
 

(Pages 
25 - 28) 

7  COVID-19 LOCAL OUTBREAK CONTROL PLAN UPDATE 
 
The report details progress on Surrey’s Local Outbreak Control Plan 
including key outcomes and milestones to date, challenges and next steps 
going forward. 
 

(Pages 
29 - 42) 

8  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting of the Surrey Local Outbreak Engagement Board will 
take place on 17 June 2021. 
 

 

 
 

Joanna Killian 
Chief Executive 

Surrey County Council 
Published: Wednesday, 7 April 2021 

 

QUESTIONS, PETITIONS AND PROCEDURAL MATTERS 

The Surrey Local Outbreak Engagement Board will consider questions submitted by Members 
of the Council, members of the public who are electors of the Surrey County Council area and 
petitions containing 100 or more signatures relating to a matter within its terms of reference, in 
line with the procedures set out in Surrey County Council’s Constitution. 
 
Please note: 
 

1. Members of the public can submit one written question to the meeting. Questions 
should relate to general policy and not to detail. Questions are asked and answered in 
public and so cannot relate to “confidential” or “exempt” matters (for example, personal 
or financial details of an individual – for further advice please contact the committee 
manager listed on the front page of this agenda). 

2. The number of public questions which can be asked at a meeting may not exceed six. 
Questions which are received after the first six will be held over to the following meeting 
or dealt with in writing at the Chairman’s discretion. 

3. Questions will be taken in the order in which they are received. 
4. Questions will be asked and answered without discussion. The Chairman or Board 

Members may decline to answer a question, provide a written reply or nominate another 
Member to answer the question. 

5. Following the initial reply, one supplementary question may be asked by the questioner. 
The Chairman or Board Members may decline to answer a supplementary question. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



53 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the SURREY LOCAL OUTBREAK ENGAGEMENT 
BOARD held at 2.00 pm on 18 February 2021, remotely via Microsoft Teams. 
 
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Board at its next meeting.  
 
Members:  
(*Present)  
 
* Joanna Killian  
* Mr Tim Oliver  
* Ruth Hutchinson  
* Mrs Sinead Mooney (Chairman)  
* Mrs Mary Lewis  
* Karen Brimacombe  
* Annie Righton  
   Cllr Mark Brunt (Vice-Chairman) 
   Cllr Stuart Selleck 
   Dr Charlotte Canniff  
* Sue Sjuve  
* Dr Pramit Patel  
* Gavin Stephens  
* David Munro  
* Andrew Lloyd  
* Louise Punter 
 
 

1/21   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   [ITEM 1] 

Apologies were received from Cllr Mark Brunt and Cllr Stuart Selleck.  
 

2/21    MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 20 NOVEMBER 2020   [ITEM 2] 

The minutes were agreed as a true record of the meeting, provided that reference 
to university students concerning the address given at the point of testing be added 
to key point 11 of item 23/20. 

3/21   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS   [ITEM 3] 

There were none. 

4/21   QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS   [ITEM 4] 

a    MEMBERS' QUESTIONS [Item 4a]  

None received. 

b    PUBLIC QUESTIONS [Item 4b] 

Three questions were received from members of the public. The responses can be 
found attached to these minutes as Annex A.  

A supplementary question was asked from one member of the public and the verbal 
response can be found below.  
 

3. Supplementary question asked by Philip Walker: 
 
The questioner reiterated his question enquiring as to whether the Council 
considered the UK Influenza Pandemic Preparedness Strategy 2011 to be relevant 

Page 5

Item 2



54 
 

with regards to Covid-19 and referred to point 2.20 from the Strategy which 
recommended preparing for a case fatality rate of 2.5% assuming no effective 
treatment was available. The response received suggested that a lack of antiviral 
treatments was a reason for deviating from the Strategy and he noted that the case 
fatality rates of Covid-19 across the vast majority of the population was much lower 
than the 2.5% fatality rate.  

The questioner asked whether there was any intention of systematising the effects 
of the restrictions on vulnerable groups as well as all residents, in order to help 
people cope with the now almost a year of having in some cases, everything that 
they really had to live for away from them.  

The questioner noted that the response in relation to Surrey’s Local Outbreak 
Control Plan did not mention an ethical framework as laid out by the Strategy and 
asked whether there was a cost-benefit analysis for the measures put in place as 
the Council had a duty to protect its residents and minimise disruption. 

Response: 

The Director of Public Health (SCC) recognised the importance recovery and that 
certain population groups had been disproportionately affected as highlighted in the 
Community Impact Assessment (CIA), which was fed into Surrey’s Local Outbreak 
Control Plan (LOCP) - which had been constantly updated since it was published. 
She noted that there was a health inequalities group that looked at Covid-19 
recovery and going forward the findings across the recovery workstreams would be 
woven into the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. She explained that later in the 
agenda the Public Health Principal (SCC) would provide an update on the impact of 
Covid-19 on Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) communities. She added that 
she chaired the recent Equalities, Engagement and Inclusion Group which looked at 
vaccination outreach to hard to reach groups that had been disproportionately 
affected.  

She explained that cost-benefit analyses were undertaken for the different 
programmes carried out at the local level as it was vital that there was robust 
evaluation regarding value for money, the impact of national restrictions and 
ensuring constant engagement with the population groups.  

The Public Health Consultant (SCC) added that within the CIA there were Rapid 
Needs Assessments (RNAs) that focussed on ten different population groups that 
had been disproportionately affected by Covid-19 and through that targeted work 
recommendations as well as actions from those had been shared with the health 
system.  

The Chairman thanked those members of the public for submitting their questions 
as well as the supplementary question asked, welcoming their interest in the work 
of Surrey County Council regarding its response to Covid-19 and the Surrey LOCP. 
 

c    PETITIONS [Item 4c]  

There were none. 

5/21    COVID-19 SURVEILLANCE UPDATE   [ITEM 5] 

Witnesses: 

Naheed Rana - Public Health Consultant (SCC)  

 

Page 6



55 
 

Key points raised in the discussion: 

1. The Public Health Consultant (SCC) presented the latest reporting figures 
between 8-14 February 2021 noting that Surrey’s seven-day rate was 90.8 
per 100,000 population, which was lower than the England rate of 130 per 
100,000 population and the South East rate of 92.7 per 100,000 population. 
The downward trajectory indicated that the impact of lockdown and all the 
other targeted actions of Surrey’s health and care partners and local 
communities had a positive effect.  

2. The Public Health Consultant (SCC) noted that at present within Surrey, 
Spelthorne had the highest rate at 148.2 per 100,000 population and 
Elmbridge had the lowest rate at 63.6 per 100,000 population.  

3. The Public Health Consultant (SCC) presented the epi curve which showed 
the number of cases from the beginning of the pandemic - 66,594 - up to the 
current point on 15 February 2021 which showed a steep decline and the 
three lockdowns were highlighted. 

4. The Public Health Consultant (SCC) presented a heatmap on the age-specific 
confirmed case rate in Surrey between 19 January - 11 February 2021 from 
groups 0-15 to 60 plus years. Around 21 January the heatmap showed a very 
high case rate for 30-44, high rates for 16-29 and 45-59 years and by 11 
February the case rate was low for all age groups.  

5. The Public Health Consultant (SCC) presented heatmaps of Surrey and 
surrounding areas which showed the weekly case rates per 100,000 
population by local authority. The heatmap from 8-14 January 2021 showed 
very high case rates closer to the top range of 700 plus cases per 100,000 
population and over a series of weeks to the most recent map 4-10 February 
2021 showed low rates closer to the low range of 0-99.9 cases per 100,000 
population. 

6. The Public Health Consultant (SCC) highlighted Surrey’s intelligence 
publications including the daily dashboard of Surrey Covid-19 cases which 
was published using publicly available data as well as the bi-weekly Covid-19 
intelligence summary published every Thursday and Monday which provided 
further detail about vaccinations, the death rate, cases and the mapping of 
cases by postcode.  

7. The Public Health Consultant (SCC) provided assurance that surveillance and 
intelligence continued to be monitored daily by the Public Health team (SCC) 
in conjunction with partners to manage outbreaks and to support 
communications. 

 
RESOLVED: 

The Board noted the verbal update and presentation.  

Actions/further information to be provided: 

None.  

Sue Sjuve joined the meeting at 2.22pm 

6/21 COVID-19 LOCAL OUTBREAK CONTROL PLAN - COMMUNICATIONS PLAN 
UPDATE   [ITEM 6] 

Witnesses: 

Andrea Newman - Director of Communications and Engagement (SCC) 
Ruth Hutchinson - Director of Public Health (SCC)  
 
 

Page 7



56 
 

Key points raised in the discussion: 

1. The Director of Communications and Engagement (SCC) highlighted that:  

 The key areas of focus since the last Board included the national 
lockdown measures, Surrey surge testing, asymptomatic testing and 
the vaccination rollout. 

 The Council led on the communications response to the pandemic as 
the Public health authority, however that was done in partnership 
through the Surrey Local Resilience Form (LRF) and through 
communications teams across Surrey co-ordinating the Surrey-wide 
communications response via the Multi-Agency Information Group 
(MIG). 

 The primary objective had been to ensure that residents maintained a 
good level of understanding of national lockdown procedures and 
guidelines and noted the continued high levels of resident 
engagement through both digital and non-digital tactics. 

 The level of national and local media opportunities had increased 
which resulted in positive coverage of Surrey putting it in the spotlight 
regarding its response to the pandemic.  

 The most recent activity supported had been surge testing or 
Operation Eagle initially carried out in Woking - Egham followed on - 
and had moved at pace, being delivered within a few days. Residents 
were informed in advance about the operation and the decision was 
made to release a public news story on surge testing which resulted in 
an increased media interest in Surrey. The feedback on doorsteps was 
positive as residents understood what was happening and were 
impressed with the rapid responses of the LRF, the Council and 
Woking Borough Council. 

 Communications tactics and channels used around the surge testing 
included digital targeting such as through Google Display advertising, 
ad vans which provided high visibility, a video message of the Director 
of Public Health (SCC) which was shared across WhatsApp channels 
which was a useful learning tool from Leicester, through social media 
such as Facebook, Twitter and Instagram in which over 14,000 users 
were reached in Woking and over 12,000 in Egham; the use of Woking 
Borough Council’s electoral roll email to contact those in the affected 
area and again learning from Leicester, having a map quickly available 
for residents to be able to understand whether they were affected and 
there were 182,000 visits to the surge area map on the Council’s 
website.  

 Although there was a large amount of people involved in the surge 
testing logistically on the ground, communications and engagement 
had played a large role in influencing residents to take part in the 
voluntary exercise noting the 90% plus return rate in both Woking and 
Egham.  

 Regarding vaccination communications, Surrey Heartlands was 
leading on the communications through their colleagues with the NHS 
and the Department of Health and Social Care. 

 Diverse communications channels included the Vaccination 
Communications Sub-group within the MIG to support health 
colleagues to ensure that there was consistency in messaging 
focussing around the three C’s, which was reducing complacency, 
boosting confidence in the vaccination rollout and promoting 
convenience.  

Page 8



57 
 

 Support was provided to the Equalities, Inclusion and Engagement 
Sub-group which was led by the Director of Public Health (SCC) with 
Surrey Heartlands, to really focus on boosting vaccine confidence 
particularly with those hard to reach groups. Successes included 
working closely with community faith leaders such as Woking’s Imam 
as well as working with the Public Health team (SCC) to identify Urdu 
speaking communities, a video had been shared in order to dispel 
myths around the vaccine contents and had reached 90% of Urdu 
speaking residents in Surrey.  

 It was nearly the year anniversary of the first Covid-19 case in Surrey 
so she had asked colleagues within the MIG to submit their 
engagement figures so that she could provide a collective high-level 
overview of engagement in Surrey achieved through partnership 
working since the start of the pandemic.  

2. A Board member thanked the Director of Communications and Engagement 
(SCC) as well as communications colleagues and key partners within the LRF 
for their work throughout the pandemic and particularly around the surge 
testing, noting the balance between the urgency and need to act swiftly with 
reassuring messages to residents. The success of engagement was 
demonstrated by the 90% return rate as opposed to the early predictions of 
30% that Public Health England would have expected.  

3. A Board member asked what the results were regarding the surge testing to 
identify any cases of the South African variant, whether the results were in the 
public domain and if those who took the test knew their results on the variant.   
- In response, the Director of Public Health (SCC) explained that there 

were two stages. The first stage was whether people tested positive or 
not as it was known that one in three people were asymptomatic and out 
of the 10,000 residents tested there were positive test results. As usual 
the Test and Trace system contacted those people with positive test 
results and that data was in public domain on the GOV.UK website and 
was divisible by ward. However, the second stage concerned the data on 
the variant and that data was only slowly emerging at a regional level with 
only minimal local level data and the data on the variant was not in the 
public domain - Directors of Public Health nationally continued to request 
that data to ascertain the spread of the variant and to feed that back to 
residents.  

4. A Board member joined in thanking the Director of Communications and 
Engagement (SCC), noting that the handling of the media frenzy around the 
surge testing in Surrey was impressive as well as the 90% return rate of tests 
which showed that there were good established engagement links with 
residents. As the asymptomatic testing had been delayed and was starting up 
again, she asked how the communications messaging on asymptomatic 
testing in three centres would be juggled alongside the communications 
messaging on the surge testing which had expanded into other areas in 
Surrey.  
- In response, the Director of Communications and Engagement (SCC) 

noted that asymptomatic testing was delayed for exactly that reason. The 
asymptomatic testing messaging such as through social media or digital 
advertising was specifically targeted to postcodes not in the affected 
areas for the surge testing particularly in Woking. 

5. The Chairman thanked the Director of Communications and Engagement 
(SCC) for her work and presentation and all those involved in Operation 
Eagle.   
 

 

Page 9



58 
 

RESOLVED: 

The Board noted the activity outlined in the report. 

Actions/further information to be provided: 

None.  

7/21   COVID-19 LOCAL OUTBREAK CONTROL PLAN UPDATE   [ITEM 7] 

Witnesses: 

Ruth Hutchinson - Director of Public Health (SCC) 
Caroline Chapman - Senior Public Health Contact Tracing Lead (SCC) 
Martyn Munro - Senior Public Health Lead (SCC) 
Jack Healy - Public Health Lead (SCC) 
Negin Sarafraz-Shekary - Public Health Principal (SCC) 
Naheed Rana - Public Health Consultant (SCC) 
Jane Chalmers - COVID Director, Surrey Heartlands  
Gavin Stephens - Chief Constable of Surrey Police 
Liz Uliasz - Deputy Director - Adult Social Care (SCC) 
Patricia Denney - Director - Quality and Performance for Children, Families and 
Learning (SCC) 
Mary Lewis - Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Families (SCC)  

Key points raised in the discussion: 

1. The Director of Public Health (SCC) provided an update on the national 
context, noting that: 

 There would be a big announcement by Government on 22 February 
concerning the lockdown exit roadmap and gradual easing of 
restrictions such as more pupils being on site at schools.  

 As a result of the roadmap, regional conveners had noted that there 
was an expectation that there would be major revisions to the LOCP 
with an update to the LOCP needed by the end of March, Surrey’s 
LOCP published last summer had been updated approximately every 
eight weeks depending on national changes. 

 It was announced on 16 February that an extra 1.7 million people in 
England would join the 2.3 million on the shielding list those ‘clinically 
extremely vulnerable’. The change was as a result of new modelling 
published in the British Medical Journal, the new assessment tool took 
into account multiple risk factors of catching Covid-19 and becoming 
gravely ill.  

 The national guidance on shielding had not changed, due to be 
republished on 21 February it would instead be extended to 31 March, 
individuals added to the list would be notified and it meant that an extra 
820,000 adults aged 19-69 would be prioritised for a vaccination. 

2. The Senior Public Health Contact Tracing Lead (SCC) provided an update on 
local contact tracing, noting: 

 The journey that a case took through the system from day zero when it 
arrived in which there was eight hours for the individual with a positive 
case to complete their details online. There was then twenty-four hours 
for the national Test and Trace system to complete the contact tracing. 
By day three, if contract tracing by the national system was 
unsuccessful the cases would be passed to the local system and in 
Surrey there was five days of local contact tracing up to day seven the 
end of the journey.   

Page 10



59 
 

 That the advantages of local contract tracing were that:  
- the local contact tracers themselves were Surrey residents who 

understood the challenges facing fellow residents. 
- there was an option to ring back or reply by email to the local 

contact tracers increasing the success rate particularly if those 
contacted were ill during the initial contact. 

- the advice and welfare support offered by the local contact tracers 
was through the Customer Services team (SCC) who had access to 
a range of different support services available utilising volunteers 
such as dog-walkers. 

- the training for local contact trainers was a week and a half as it 
was comprehensive not just on the Contact Tracing and Advice 
Service (CTAS) itself but also advice and support and how to 
manage difficult situations. 

- the ratio of contact traces to team leaders was good with team 
leaders supervising five or so contact traces which will give them 
plenty of scope to support the contact tracers. 

- face to face contact tracing was being trialled for two areas in 
Surrey for those few cases who had not engaged online, responded 
to the twenty-four hours of national contact tracing and had not 
responded to the local team; via an environmental health officer 
through home visits providing isolation advice and encouraging 
telephone contact to be made in that moment with the contact 
tracing team. 

- family groups could be contact traced in one call.  

 Local contact tracing had been rolled out across the whole of Surrey via 
the Customer Services team (SCC) with support by the public health 
teams.  

 The combined national and local contact tracing of cases across Surrey 
was 86% of cases daily and between 10-16 February 2021, the local 
contact tracing service reached 71% of cases that the national team 
was unable to contact within twenty-four hours. 

 Surrey had been invited to participate in a hot spot pilot beginning on 3 
March covering two districts within Surrey for two weeks initially, using 
local contact tracing for the whole period after the eight hours had 
passed for the individual with a positive case to complete their details 
online. 

3. A Board member welcomed the success of local contact tracing and the pilot 
but noted the national problem of some individuals not going for a test nor 
complying with self-isolation and asked what the scale of the situation was in 
Surrey. 

- In response, the Director of Public Health (SCC) noted that in Surrey the 
average was that approximately 86% of those who had a positive test 
engaged with the local contact tracing service, which was slightly above 
the average and the team was confident it could increase that level.  

- The Senior Public Health Contact Tracing Lead (SCC) noted that it 
would be difficult to assess the level of those who did not go for a test 
despite having symptoms and noted that the feedback from the local 
contact tracing service was that the tracers were overwhelmed by how 
people wanted to engage in order to support their families and their 
communities.  

- The Chairman added that it was a difficult question to answer in terms 
of those not going for a test despite having symptoms, but noted 

Page 11



60 
 

confidence in the testing resources stood up by the Council with its key 
partners. 

4. The Senior Public Health Lead (SCC) provided an update on symptomatic or 
Pillar 2 testing concerning those who thought they had Covid-19 symptoms, 
noting that:  

 There was a Regional Test Site (RTS) in Guildford which was a drive-
through testing centre, with good regional provision in Chessington, 
Heathrow, Twickenham and Gatwick.  

 The Local Test Sites (LTS) operated in dense urban areas offering walk 
up and cycle to testing and tended to have more resource to spend 
longer with individuals to talk them through the testing process if 
needed. Currently there were LTSs in Egham, Guildford, Farnham, 
Hersham, Woking, Camberley and Epsom, with a Spelthorne LTS to 
follow.  

 There were also Mobile Testing Units (MTU) which were deployed 
around the county, rotated across the boroughs and districts and 
additional MTUs were deployed to areas with increasing rates of 
infection.  

 Home test kits were also delivered directly to individuals’ homes for 
them and their families so that they could self-test, tests were posted 
and results were via the Test and Trace system.  

 The number of tests registered on the national system: between 30 
December 2020 - 5 January 2021 was 24,815 tests via the RTS, LTSs 
and MTUs and 5,422 home tests with a turnaround time range of 31-45 
hours; compared to 6,429 tests via the RTS, LTSs and MTUs and 7,393 
home tests between 8 February - 15 February 2021 with a turnaround 
time range of 15-27 hours.  

 The recent increase in home testing between 8 February - 15 February 
2021 could be attributed to the surge testing or Operation Eagle in 
which there were 3,430 in Egham.  

 There were other testing routes for care homes, extra care and 
supported living, and domiciliary and healthcare workers. Provisions for 
those settings were rapidly changing and also included asymptomatic 
testing too.   

5. The Public Health Lead (SCC) provided an update on the targeted community 
testing programme or asymptomatic testing in Surrey, noting that: 

 Targeted community testing used the lateral flow device tests which 
give a quicker turnaround of results with processing taking about half an 
hour, rather than the PCR test used for symptomatic individuals which 
could take up to a day due to the lab processing needed.   

 Individuals self-administered their swab and results were processed on 
site which are uploaded onto the national system and the results were 
sent to the individual by text message or email after they left the site.  

 Asymptomatic testing was available to anyone living or working within 
Surrey who must leave home to work, small and medium sized public 
sector and private sector businesses, charities, voluntary groups and 
any educational and childcare settings which did not have access to 
symptom-free testing through other national routes such as those led by 
the Department of Health and Social Care including care homes, 
schools or institutional testing for businesses with fifty employees or 
more; participants must also be symptom-free and not self-isolating at 
the time. 

 The online booking system was live on the website where tests could be 
booked at one of the sites - up to two weeks in advance.  

Page 12



61 
 

 Twice weekly testing was encouraged in line with the other national led 
symptom-free testing programmes.  

 There were currently three asymptomatic testing sites in Spelthorne, 
Epsom and Woking and those areas were chosen as the initial sites 
based on epidemiological data across the pandemic and demographics. 

 There were also three pharmacies delivering asymptomatic testing with 
an additional twenty-two pharmacies to deliver testing within the next 
week with future plans to extend that provision. 

 There was a need to ensure flexibility with regards to Surrey’s 
programme of asymptomatic testing to complement national 
asymptomatic testing programmes.  

 Further information was available online including FAQs. 
6. The Public Health Principal (SCC) provided an update on Covid-19 and 

BAME communities, noting that: 

 The RNAs last summer collected feedback from BAME communities to 
understand their experiences of Covid-19, what worked well in what 
could be done better in terms of the Council’s response.  

 BAME groups had been disproportionately impacted by Covid-19 with 
evidence showing that they were at greater risk of both hospitalisation 
and mortality. 

 The key attributing factors suggesting why the BAME population was 
disproportionately impacted were linked to:  

- pre-existing health conditions such as cardiovascular conditions, 
diabetes and high blood pressure which tended to be more 
prevalent. 

- a higher tendency to work in frontline and in low pay jobs, 
increasing the risk of exposure.  

- poorer access to healthcare services compared to other 
population groups due to number of factors that could be cultural 
behaviour or relating to previous experiences with those services.  

 That the issues noted above needed to be contextualised with regards 
to pre-existing inequalities pre-pandemic, discrimination and racism 
were highlighted in the RNAs as significant drivers that had resulted in 
the disproportionate impacts and reduced the level of trust.  

 Although addressing pre-existing health inequalities was a long-term 
action, key immediate actions as a result of the BAME RNA included: 
building capacity within Surrey’s BAME community charity organisations 
through the Surrey Minority and Ethnic Forum and a post had been joint 
funded with Surrey Heartlands for a Health and Race Wellbeing officer 
who would act as a conduit and trusted voice to transmit key messages 
to BAME communities.  

 A key issue highlighted in the BAME RNA concerned the lack of 
information available in different languages, noting the work of the 
Communications team (SCC) with Woking’s Imam to ensure that 
messages were culturally appropriate - as it was vital that both 
symptomatic and asymptomatic testing was accessible.  

 Another key issue highlighted in the RNA was the lack of ethnicity data 
collection as without knowing where Surrey’s BAME populations were it 
was difficult to tailor interventions and design engagement and data 
collection formed a key workstream within the health inequalities group 
and was one of the key factors highlighted in the NHS’ Phase Three 
letter.  

 In collaboration with public health teams and health colleagues work 
was being done to extend the NHS Health Check locally, it was a 

Page 13



62 
 

national programme that identified people with high risk of 
cardiovascular disease and it was a priority that it be accessible to 
Surrey’s BAME groups both for primary care and workplace settings; as 
well as making sure that all BAME staff had received a comprehensive 
risk assessment and clear action plan in order to support those that 
were working in frontline occupations. 

7. The Chairman picked up a comment in the Teams chat asking if there was 
anything that could be learnt from the QCOVID data exercise in relation to 
supporting Surrey’s BAME communities such as around testing. 

- In response, the Public Health Principal (SCC) recognised the 
importance of collecting ethnicity data for positive Covid-19 tests and 
those receiving a vaccination. Noting that although there was a tick box 
to fill regarding a person’s ethnicity not everyone had filled that box due 
to a number of reasons such as not associating themselves with that 
specific tick box or being worried about disclosing ethnicity data and not 
knowing where it was being stored. 

- The Public Health Consultant (SCC) noted that one of the urgent 
actions from the NHS’ Phase Three letter and requirements from the 
health sector to reduce health inequalities was to improve the data 
recording of the ethnicity at hospitals and other systems. Building trust, 
ensuring clear communications on data collection was key as well as 
the accountability to improve data collection within the system and make 
every contact count. 

8. The COVID Director for Surrey Heartlands provided an update on the 
vaccination rollout programme, noting that: 

 Excellent progress had been made in Surrey Heartlands with the 
vaccination rollout programme, from 8 December 2020 when the first 
vaccination was administered at the Royal Surrey Hospital up to 18 
February 2021 over 260,000 vaccinations had been administered in 
Surrey Heartlands and the vast majority were first doses.  

 The percentages of vaccination delivery for some of the key priority 
cohorts 1-4 was over 90% for older adult care home residents and from 
age 70 upwards. Although the programme was moving on to cohorts 5 
and 6 those who had not taken up the vaccine in the earlier cohorts would 
continue to be encouraged to do so. 

 6 February 2021 had been the best day to date when 9,535 vaccinations 
were administered across Surrey Heartlands and their best week saw 
over 50,000 receiving the vaccine.  

 Regarding Surrey Heartlands COVID-19 Delivery Plan a strong start had 
been made through delivering vaccines through hospital hubs, local 
vaccination services (PCNs), the large vaccination centre at 
Epsom Downs Racecourse, two community pharmacies in Guildford and 
a roving team to support the housebound and those in care homes.  

 Both the Pfizer-Biontech and AstraZeneca vaccines were being used and 
had been delivered safely with an extremely low volume of clinical 
incidents.  

 The delivery of the programme had been a real partnership effort across 
the NHS, local authorities, local partners, voluntary services and 
volunteers at the vaccination sites.  

 Key challenges of the rollout continued to be around supply and 
allocations particularly concerning the second dose supply which would 
begin to be delivered later in the month as well as moving the programme 
into a business as usual approach going forward.  

Page 14



63 
 

 The governance structure had been refined to highlight the decision 
making, operational and assurance boards and groups centred around 
the Surrey Vaccinations Programme Delivery Board chaired by the Senior 
Responsible Officer, Surrey Heartlands with involvement by the Chief 
Executive (SCC) and noted the inclusion of Frimley via the Frimley ICS 
Covid Vaccination Programme Board.  

 In response to the letter from the Secretary of State for Health and Social 
Care and the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government on greater determination by local government going forward, 
the delivery plan had been condensed into fifteen points of delivery on a 
continuum from incident management to business as usual.  

9. A Board member noted the fantastic partnership endeavour throughout the 
vaccination programme across the system including borough and district 
councils. Progress had been made and the challenge would be to convert the 
current activity into a business as usual going forward.  

10. The Board member further noted that one of the proposals going forward was 
for a large mass vaccination site as the rollout extended to cohorts 5-9, noting 
the merits but asked for further detail on the impacts such as the difficulty in 
travel concerning the Gatwick option.  

- In response, the COVID Director for Surrey Heartlands noted that there 
was consideration being given to a regional super site for the South 
East and the possible location was Gatwick. A decision on that was 
imminent and had been discussed last week by the COVID 
Vaccinations Steering Group. The view of the Steering Group was 
reflected in a recent regional meeting in that whilst regional capacity 
could be useful particularly regarding ‘cohort 10’ which was the rest of 
the adult population, that regional super site should not be at the 
expense of using the existing local delivery model which provided 
accessibility for hard to reach residents. 

11. The Chairman noted that it was an opportunity for Board members to 
comment on that option, noting that Gatwick would be a challenging location 
to reach for some residents and welcomed the continued use of the local 
model. 

12. A Board member strongly supported the use of the existing local model as 
well as the possible Gatwick regional super site, noting that more travel went 
against the green agenda which should be viewed in conjunction with the 
health agenda.  

13. The Chairman highlighted a Board member’s comment in the Teams chat 
asking whether the large vaccination centre at Epsom Downs Racecourse 
would continue. 

- In response, the COVID Director for Surrey Heartlands noted that the 
centre at Epsom Downs Racecourse would continue until early May with 
a further discussion to be had as Epsom Jockey Club were looking to 
have their facilities back for the Derby in early June so the premises 
would need to be vacated for a short period.  

- As a result they were working on plans around the use of the estates to 
make sure that everything was in place until 3 May which was the next 
milestone for the rollout to cohorts 5-9, with a further strategic 
conversation about the estates beyond that date to follow and a 
conversation on the Gatwick option might play into that in terms of the 
capacity needed. 

- The Chairman noted the further comment in the Teams chat noting that 
a location in the centre of the county would be sensible given the 
transport challenges around Gatwick and asked for the COVID Director 

Page 15



64 
 

for Surrey Heartlands to keep the Board updated on the decision around 
the Gatwick option. 

14. The Chief Constable of Surrey Police provided an update on enforcement, 
noting key headlines which included figures accurate up to 26 January 2021: 

 11,632 Covid-related incidents were reported to Surrey Police. 

 790 Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) since the start of the first lockdown 
on 23 March 2020, although there had been an increase in recent 
weeks with 363 FPNs since the latest lockdown beginning 4 January 
2021 and 109 FPNs in the last week. The number showed the high 
compliance rate of residents, noting the success of Surrey Police’s use 
of the Four Es: engage, explain, encourage and enforce. 

 The use of the Four Es was vital particularly as there had been many 
changes in the national regulations and enforcement was a last resort, 
in Surrey there had not been the same level of mass gatherings or 
unlicensed music events and parties compared to other areas, with 
only three £10,000 fines issued to date. 

 That the Home Office had issued additional surge funding of just under 
£400,000 to help with Covid-related issues with a recent further 
extension to that funding, allowing Surrey Police to maintain its internal 
command structure via Operation Apollo which supported the work of 
the LRF, as well as some dedicated high-visibility patrols by a police 
sergeant and six police constables to particular Covid-related incident 
hot spots working with local authorities and licensing authorities of the 
problem premises.  

 The recent discussion at the national gold group highlighted the risks 
around easing out of national restrictions as peoples’ tolerance levels 
were lowering and some were not adhering to the current restrictions 
running the risk of fines in order to get their incomes moving again. 

 A recent theft from the large vaccination centre at Epsom Downs 
Racecourse in which four arrests had been made and items seized.   

15. The Chairman queried why the amount of FPNs since 4 January 2021 and in 
the last week was high.  
- In response, the Chief Constable of Surrey Police explained that 

compliance levels were waning, noting the national communications of 
expectations for the future including the easing of restrictions. The current 
restrictions were clear as people needed a lawful excuse to leave home 
and enforcement statistics had risen with approximately 900 FPNs to 
date.  

16. The Chairman noted the future easing of restrictions and rise in FPNs, asking 
if there was a plan in place to mitigate that and asked whether Board 
members could help collectively to support that issue.  

- In response, the Chief Constable of Surrey Police noted that the issue 
had been discussed at the LRF’s Strategic Coordinating Group, noting 
the need to carefully tailor communications ensuring that people adhere 
to the current restrictions, welcoming the partnership support from Board 
members across their different agencies and areas of influence, and 
importance of public health messages such as that one in three people 
were asymptomatic and to behave as if you had the virus. 

17. The Deputy Director - Adult Social Care (SCC) provided an update on Adult 
Social care, noting that:                                                    

 Care homes:  
- there was good news as the data was showing a decrease in 

positive cases, outbreaks and deaths as well as increasing 
vaccinations. Today, the number of homes with four positive cases 

Page 16



65 
 

dropped to six, the capacity tracker would continue to monitor that 
situation and supporting the care homes with infection control, 
quality assurance issues. 

- in terms of Surrey’s in-house homes it was an improving picture 
and staffing levels were improving also.  

 Winter pressures: 
- had primarily been generated by Covid-19, the system was under 

pressure and ASC had been supporting the daily Incident 
Management Group calls and Area Directors were working on a 
locality basis to make sure that the system was supported around 
the acutes, flow and teams continued to work seven days a week to 
support hospital discharge as it was vital to get people back to their 
own homes rather than having a care home placement.  

 Mental health: 
- pressures remained noting acuity and demand, and across the age 

groups in children's and adults. Surrey Heartlands Mental Health 
Emergency Response Service with representatives from all 
partners, district and borough councils, ASC, Childrens, Families 
and Learning (CFL), commissioners and providers. There were 
eight pillars of work to address the issues around supporting the 
workforce and schools. The two pillars that ASC was jointly leading 
on were accommodation issues and hospital flow. 

 Over the last year there had been a 32% increase in the work going 
through to ASC and although it was a busy time, there was a whole 
system approach to managing and supporting staffs’ welfare such as 
through the Resilience Hub launched by the Surrey and Borders 
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (SABP) and included staff in the 
provider market not just health or social care staff. 

18. The Chairman noted the positive change in the decrease in Covid-19 cases in 
care homes as well as the key updates on mental health and the ongoing 
pressures within ASC, noting the Council's commitment to improving mental 
health outcomes and working with key partners and thanked the Deputy 
Director - Adult Social Care (SCC) for her work.  

19. A Board member noted that vaccinations of care home staff was causing 
concern nationally and asked what Surrey’s position was and what the 
vaccination percentage was for those caring for older people.  

- In response, the Deputy Director - Adult Social Care (SCC) noted the 
vaccination percentages for cohort one covering care homes was above 
90%; where there had not been vaccinations in care homes it was 
possibly due to a Covid-19 outbreak as people could not be vaccinated 
until twenty-eight days afterwards. 

- Older people aged 80 plus again had a vaccination percentage of over 
90% and those caring for them such as healthcare workers, social care 
workers, home based care providers, supported living carers were in 
cohort two which had a good vaccination uptake across providers, 
noting the joint partnership work with the Surrey Care Association and 
the Skills Academy. 

20. The Director - Quality and Performance for Children, Families and Learning 
(SCC) provided an update on the Children, Families and Learning (CFL) 
directorate, noting that:  

 Wider impacts of Covid-19 on educational settings: 
- over this last year the tremendous work that schools had done in 

terms of remaining open for our vulnerable children, children with 

Page 17



66 
 

Education, Health and Care (EHC) plans and children of key 
workers.  

- during the lockdowns, the Department for Education’s return figures 
showed that there was a higher percentage of children with an EHC 
plan who had been attending school with an attendance percentage 
of 24% compared to the national attendance rate of 16%. Looking 
at the overall figure of vulnerable children the attendance 
percentage was 31% during the lockdowns compared to 11% 
nationally.  

- those figures in Surrey had been achieved through joint working 
between children's social care and education, weekly meetings to 
encourage in school attendance and school absence was 
monitored closely through a RAG (Red-Amber-Green) rating 
system.  

- the lack of routine for autistic children had been problematic and in 
some cases had led to a breakdown in their school placements and 
at the start of the school term there had been a large increase in 
request for parents who were seeking for their children to be 
electively home educated, the service was working with each one of 
those parents to try to promote the benefits of remaining within a 
school system.  

- referrals to the Children's Single Point of Access (C-SPA) had 
increased although the rate had stabilised compared to last year.  

- adaptable leadership within the schools, head teachers were faced 
with a range of challenges due to changing guidance and at any 
given time across the whole system up to two-hundred teachers 
were self-isolating, and dealt with balancing classroom learning and 
remote learning. 

- some of the schools were as much as 80% full and schools 
provided assistance to children's social care acting as the ears and 
eyes over Surrey’s vulnerable children. 

- teachers in Special, Education, Needs and Disabilities (SEND) 
schools were being vaccinated and the service still made the case 
for all teachers being vaccinated.  

- regarding children’s social care, the service was trying to maintain 
face to face contact with those children where it was safe to do so.  

 Family economic hardship and the impact of coronavirus: 
- families with children of school age had been hit hard by the 

pandemic financially, with many parents losing their jobs or were 
furloughed and looking for employment was difficult whilst 
balancing childcare.  

- there were few opportunities for young people who wanted to leave 
the education system into employment.  

- there was an increase of those children eligible for free school 
meals, although the stigma was a challenge.  

- there was an increased level of mental health problems both in 
parents and in children, noting that self-harm in children had 
increased in the last eighteen months, there was a higher level of 
suicide in the teenage population and there were more incidents of 
injuries to babies compared to previous years - such issues were 
reflected in national figures.  

 Demand and crisis in Children’s Mental Health Services (CAMHS): 
- because of the demand CAMHS were reaching out and trying to 

work closely with parents and children, working alongside 
colleagues in schools and there was a range of support available 

Page 18



67 
 

including online facilities and additional clinical support for those 
children who may present at a local hospital.  

 Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health Contract (EWMH): 
- the EWMH contract went out to tender and was awarded on behalf 

of the provider Alliance would come into force in April 2021, noting 
the optimism that there would be an improvement in terms of 
support our young people going forward and the backlog would be 
cleared before the new contract came into place.  

21. The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Families (SCC): 

 Welcomed the report on CFL being presented to the Board, echoing the 
public question concerning cohorts that had been particularly badly 
affected by Covid-19 and noted that young people were one of those 
cohorts. 

 Noted that young people had responded well and complied with the 
restrictions. 

 Noted that the impact on young people had been significant, schools 
had been important partners in terms of supporting the most vulnerable. 

 Highlighted the thematic review: Deaths of Children and Young People 
through probable suicide 2014-2020 presented to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board last September by the Surrey Safeguarding Children 
Partnership that showed that self-harm was an early indicator of 
adolescent suicide. 

 That regarding CAMHS, the 45% increase in self-harm and 66% 
increase in eating disorders with increases in serious cases requiring 
hospitalisation reported to the digital provider Kooth.com.   

 Noted the importance of keeping Surrey’s young people in mind and put 
in a plea to lobby for teaching staff to get recognition for their hard work 
throughout the pandemic, that they should get vaccinations so that 
schools could be kept open so as not to prolong the isolation and harms 
faced by young people out of school.  

 Commended the work of the Director - Quality and Performance for 
Children, Families and Learning (SCC) who led the group who had 
worked on ensuring good attendance with higher results than the 
national data. 

 That when schools went back in September the attendance of Surrey’s 
Looked After Children was above 90% and praised the efforts of 
Surrey’s foster carers of which four hundred had been vaccinated, who 
continued to support children’s education with support of the Surrey 
Virtual School and others.   

22. The Chairman welcomed the updates on CFL and the work undertaken 
across the directorate.  

23. The Public Health Principal (SCC) agreed with the importance of the data on 
young people and that they were an important cohort, noting that the Public 
Health team (SCC) had established a Mental Health and Children Suicide 
Prevention Group which looked at the thematic review findings and had 
recently obtained Sustainability and Transformation Plans (STPs) wave four 
funding for suicide prevention which would be used towards a self-harm 
pathway review.  

24. The Director - Quality and Performance for Children, Families and Learning 
(SCC) noted the importance of the thematic review highlighted the key factors 
which increased risk in terms adolescent suicide such as parental breakdown, 
children on the Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD), who had experienced a 
significant event as well as poverty.  

 

Page 19



68 
 

RESOLVED: 

The Board: 

1. Noted the report.  
2. Would continue to provide political oversight of local delivery of the Local 

Outbreak Control Plan.  
3. Would continue to lead the engagement with local communities and be the 

public face of the local response.  
4. Members would ensure appropriate information on the programme and on 

COVID-19 in Surrey is cascaded within their own organisations and areas of 
influence. 

 
Actions/further information to be provided: 

1. The COVID Director for Surrey Heartlands will keep the Board updated on 

the decision around the Gatwick option concerning a proposed vaccination 
regional super site. 

 
8/21   DATE OF NEXT MEETING   [ITEM 8] 

It was agreed that the next meeting of the Surrey Local Outbreak Engagement 
Board would take place on 15 April 2021. 

 

Meeting ended at: 3.54pm 
______________________________________________________________  

Chairman 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 20



Annex A 

SURREY LOCAL OUTBREAK ENGAGEMENT BOARD – 18 FEBRUARY 2021 

 

 PROCEDURAL MATTERS – QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES 
 
 

1. Question submitted by John Gardner 

 
The cost to society of significantly reduced access to NHS services during lockdown means 
there will be considerable numbers of people whose conditions/diseases have progressed to 
an irretrievable point, meaning many could die prematurely of undiagnosed: cancers, 
untreated strokes, heart attacks and diabetes – all of whom have effectively been denied 
treatment. The costs and impact on the local economy could be considerable.  
 
If COVID-19 becomes endemic, and lasts much longer than anticipated, what contingency 
measures and resources does the Council envisage will be required to achieve its long-term 
objectives for the future wellbeing of its population? 
 
RESPONSE: 
 
The analysis of mortality data suggests a strong link between heightened vulnerability to 
COVID-19 and pre-existing health inequalities. Failure to reduce health inequalities is likely 
to further exacerbate the future impacts of the pandemic. 
 
The nature of health inequalities is often complex and require strategies that are multifaceted 
to bring Health, Local Government and Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector (VCFS) 
organisations to work together. 
 
In September 2020, a multi-agency Equality and Health Inequalities workstream as part of 
the Recovery Board was set up. This workstream oversees the current interventions 
targeted against the key COVID-19 health inequalities. The urgent priorities for this 
workstream have been informed by considering the key local COVID-19 vulnerabilities (e.g. 
age, pre-existing physical/mental health conditions, people with learning/physical disabilities, 
living in the most deprived areas, BAME and homeless population) and the findings of 
Surrey COVID-19 Community Impact Assessment. However, as we go into recovery, 
appropriate interventions though partnership working will need to be implemented to 
increase the well-being of the local population for benefits to be realised in short, medium 
and long terms as listed below: 
 
Short/immediate term: Reducing and managing the clinical risk factors; early diagnosis 
(e.g. cancer, stroke, dementia and cardiovascular conditions), better management of long-
term conditions (e.g. mental health, high blood pressure, diabetes, respiratory conditions) 
and addressing geographical variation in delivery of health care services.  
Medium term: Building a healthy population by promotion of the prevention agenda to 
increase the uptake of healthy life interventions, such as nutrition, physical activity, smoking 
secession, alcohol and substance misuse reduction.  
Long-term: addressing the wider determinants of health, such as economic, environmental 
and social factors. There is an urgent need to do things differently and build a society based 
on the principles of social justice in order to reduce income and wealth inequalities. Our 
strategy in rebuilding the economy needs to be based on the achievement of health and 
wellbeing outcomes, not just narrow economic goals. We also need to build a society that 
can respond to the climate crisis as well as achieving greater health equity. 
 
Doing things differently will require engagement with the local population to empower, 
rebuild resilience and strengthen community cohesions. Joint outcomes will need to be set to 

Page 21



Annex A 

bring Health, Local Government and VCFS organisations together to maximise benefit. 
Bringing these facets together effectively, requires strong engagement of the system 
leadership, partnership working to deliver integrated processes.  
 
There has been a lot of learning from the pandemic which can be expanded and built on. For 
example, initiation of great initiatives such as community champions, closer engagement 
with community faith leaders and local/regional collaboration across organisations between 
Primary/Secondary care, Local Government (including Public Health and Adult Social Care), 
statutory/non-statutory and community services. Additionally, established workstreams such 
as the Equality and Health Inequalities and Surrey Health and Wellbeing Strategy will help 
provide the delivery vehicles for making our vision to tackle inequalities in Surrey a reality.   
 

2. Question submitted by Renos Costi 

 
What is the model being used and what is the expected trend of the virus as we leave winter 
accounting for seasonality, accounting for new vaccines, and new strains which maybe 
resistant to these?  
 
What level of community infection is the Council willing to tolerate given that this must be 
weighed against the deaths directly caused by lockdowns?  
 
RESPONSE: 
 

 What is the model being used and what is the expected trend of the virus as we 
leave winter accounting for seasonality, accounting for new vaccines, and new 
strains which maybe resistant to these?  

 
There are many factors that would need quantifying, with appropriate ranges for sensitivity 
analyses, including:  
 
Seasonal effect – There have been published papers suggesting less impact over Summer 
months when compared to the Winter. This is observed in all respiratory viruses and a 
similar impact would be expected with COVID-19. However, the evidence is variable when 
comparing southern hemisphere experiences against the northern hemisphere. Therefore, 
the impact of seasonality is difficult to predict.  
 
Strength and length of immunity from infection – The most up to date data shows good 
levels of antibodies in those infected 6 months after infection. With SARS CoV, antibodies 
were sustained well for 18 months, but tailed off after that. This is unlikely to have a major 
impact on assumptions for the next 6 months, but it is not known definitively for SARS-CoV-
2. 
 
The impacts of any new significant variants – At the moment, there have emerged a 
number of variants of concern. Increases in transmissibility and the ability to evade the 
immune system (from natural immunity and current immunisations) are under investigation. 
The likely impact also depends on our border policies and how quickly emerging variants 
can be identified and ring protections put in place. None of these components can be 
accurately quantified at this stage. 
 
The impact of the vaccination programme – Without doubt, the immunisation programme 
will have a significant impact on the risk of an individual contracting COVID-19 and the 
severity of disease. Quantifying the overall impact is challenging. Modelling can take the 
published vaccine effectiveness data, the roll out schedule and likely uptake to project 
impacts forward. However, the impact on transmissibility is unclear, although likely to be 

Page 22



Annex A 

positive, and as mentioned in the variant section, we cannot be sure that mutations have not 
emerged that affect the effectiveness of the current vaccines. The potential impact of being 
vaccinated on behaviours, means predicting overall impact on transmission is impossible; 
this will also be influenced by the potential impact of infection prevention and control 
measures easing in places where everyone has been vaccinated.  
 
Political impact – Decisions on foreign travel, border control, how we exit from lockdown 
and any re-escalation will all have significant impacts on subsequent waves. Making any 
predictions of future political decisions is not viable at this stage. When escalation points and 
the measures for easing are clearer this can be reconsidered. 
 
Population behaviours – Population behaviours are very difficult to predict. The impact of 
weather, the length of restrictions, media reporting, political announcements and being 
vaccinated will all have impacts.  
 
These are all challenging considerations and any thorough sensitivity analysis will lead us to 
two scenarios - minimal subsequent wave and the original pandemic reasonable worst case 
scenario. At the moment, we await further guidance and views from SAGE that considers all 
of the expert modelling from SPI-M (Scientific Pandemic Influenza Group on 
Modelling).  Work is underway at PHE and NHS to provide insight to future modelling and 
assumptions. 
 

 What level of community infection is the Council willing to tolerate given that this 
must be weighed against the deaths directly caused by lockdowns? 

 
Decisions regarding lockdowns and release are made at a national level.  
 
 

3. Question submitted by Philip Walker 

 
In the UK Influenza Pandemic Preparedness Strategy 2011, point 2.20 recommends 
preparing for a case fatality rate of 2.5%, with severe burdens on healthcare capacity, and 
yet point 3.1.ii stresses the importance as an objective of minimising societal disruption and 
returning to normal at the earliest opportunity. Points 4.1, 4.2 and 7.4 all assume and 
recommend that the government will not restrict the normal daily lives and gatherings of the 
healthy population. 
 
The accompanying ethical framework emphasises respect for the public and the personal 
choices they make with regard for all aspects of their health, minimising the harm brought by 
disruption to society and that any restrictions be justified by cost benefit analyses. 
Current statistics show that across the vast majority of the population the lethality of COVID-
19 is a tiny fraction of the assumed 2.5% case fatality rate yet the local and national 
response to the virus has taken choice away from the whole population, prioritised the virus 
over other life and quality of life threatening concerns, and has no end point that has been 
committed to. 
 
Does the local authority consider the 2011 Strategy relevant and if not, why not? 
 
What action is the local authority taking as the vaccines are rolled out to pressure central 
government to commit to fulfilling their ethical duty to allow healthy people to choose to go 
back to normal at the earliest possible opportunity? 
 
 
 

Page 23



Annex A 

RESPONSE: 
 
There are elements of the UK Influenza Pandemic Preparedness Strategy 2011 that would 
be relevant to any disease pandemic. For example, similar factors will influence the impact 
of the pandemic, such as; disease characteristics (number of cases, severity of disease, 
transmission, clinical groups affected); service capacity (number of patients presenting to 
primary care, hospital or intensive care facilities); and the behavioural response (levels of 
concern and compliance with control measures). The key elements of a pandemic response 
will also be similar, such as detection and assessment; reducing the risk of transmission and 
infection; minimising serious illness and deaths; and vaccination.  
 
Although influenza and COVID-19 are both respiratory diseases, they are caused by 
different viruses, therefore not all of the measures set out in the UK Influenza Pandemic 
Preparedness Strategy 2011 are relevant for this current pandemic. For example, we have 
antiviral drugs available to treat influenza, however for COVID-19 we have had to explore 
possible treatment options during the pandemic and our understanding of how to treatment 
COVID-19 is still developing. We also have effective influenza vaccinations, which could be 
adapted for a new strain of influenza, however COVID-19 vaccines have had to be 
developed during the pandemic. Therefore, with limitations to the some of the measures we 
have to protect the population from COVID-19, the strategy has had to be adapted.  
 
National lockdowns are only one part of the national COVID-19 response strategy. Without 
such measures when community transmission is very high, there is the potential for COVID-
19 to cause significant morbidity and mortality within the general population, and the 
potential for the healthcare system to be overwhelmed by this burden. As the level of 
community transmission falls and more people are vaccinated, the burden of morbidity and 
mortality from COVID-19 is likely to fall and it will be possible for the level of restrictions to be 
reduced. The health and wellbeing of our residents is our primary concern, and we are 
implementing support measures to ensure that residents are supported during this period. 
The Surrey Local Outbreak Control Plan is our key vehicle for ensuring appropriate action 
takes place in response to the pandemic. 
 

Page 24



 

Surrey Local Outbreak Engagement Board  
 

1. Reference Information 

 

Paper tracking information 

Title: COVID-19 Communications Plan Update 

Authors: 

Andrea Newman, Director - Communications & 
Engagement (SCC) andrea.newman@surreycc.gov.uk 
 
Abi Pope, Senior Communications Manager - COVID-19 
Communications Lead (SCC) 
abi.pope@surreycc.gov.uk 
 

Sponsors: 
Mrs Sinead Mooney - LOEB Chairman (SCC) 
Joanna Killian - Chief Executive of Surrey County Council 
Ruth Hutchinson - Director of Public Health (SCC) 

Paper date: 15 April 2021 

Related papers 
 Surrey Local Outbreak Control Plan 

 NHS Test and Trace Communications Plan for Surrey 

 
 

2. Executive summary 

 
Roadmap Communications Plan 
 
A new campaign has been developed to support the national easing of restrictions 
as a result of the Government’s Spring Plan. The campaign aims to change the tone 
from strict lockdown messaging back to the idea of a social contract – ‘Working 
Together To Get There’. The campaign focuses on looking forward to the things we 
have missed and what we need to do to get there. This is supported by behavioural 
insights from the Cabinet Office as the best way to motivate people to stick to the 
guidelines as we reach each stage of the roadmap. 
 
New outdoor assets have been developed for popular countryside spots to remind 
people to continue safe practices, such as social distancing, and litter prevention. 
The ad vans will be touring the busiest outdoor spaces over the four-day Easter 
weekend with graphics from the new campaign.  
 
Further Variants of Concern testing 
 
The communications team supported the LRF with a successful third surge testing 
operation in the Maybury area of Woking. The team continues to work closely with 
District and Borough communications teams, PHE and the Department for Health 
and Social Care on variants of concern.  
 
 
 

Page 25

Item 6

mailto:andrea.newman@surreycc.gov.uk
mailto:abi.pope@surreycc.gov.uk


 

Vaccine Confidence 
 
Working with community groups to understand vaccine hesitancy and dispelling 
vaccine myths. Using community voices such as faith leaders to communicate and 
dispel these mis-understandings using their preferred communications channels 
such as WhatsApp, to ensure effective and fast dispersal of information. Working in 
partnership with GRT community to produce Vaccine education video. New #ididitfor 
COVIDVaccine campaign now in development with community 
stakeholders,  displaying a broad range of the Surrey demographic giving positive 
reasons for why they had the vaccine, to reduce complacency and increase vaccine 
confidence. 
 
Youth Engagement Plan 
 
To address the challenges that all Local Authorities face with reaching young people 
through their own channels, the communications team has been working with a 
specialist youth marketing agency (Livity) to develop an engaging way of getting 
some of the crucial public health messages to a young audience. Following focus 
groups and insights gathered from young people in Surrey it was established that 
peer-to-peer communications is one of the best ways to engage with this group. In 
partnership with Livity, we will be launching an Instagram Magazine Channel called 
“Soon Surrey” on the 6 April.  
 
Each month, six young people from Surrey will create content (using a variety of 
Instagram formats such as reels, stories, carousels) related to three themes: 

- The Roadmap and changing restrictions 
- Vaccine confidence 
- Mental health and wellbeing – signposting local and national resources 

 
Street Teams 
 
Surrey County Council Communications team has been working with Cabinet Office 
communications to deliver ‘Street teams’ in Woking and Staines (based on current 
prevalence and footfall). The Cabinet Office is deploying highly visible teams to hand 
out leaflets and talk to residents about changes to the guidelines, testing and 
vaccinations. Over the four-day Easter weekend. The high-vis teams will be 
accompanied by pop-up banners and ad vans using national assets. This will 
complement our local countryside messaging and ad vans to ensure we reach as 
many residents as possible over the Easter break.  
 
Targeted Community Testing 
 
Eligibility for symptom-free testing has been widened to include households, families 
and bubbles of children attending school or college, and of staff working at schools 
and colleges. The communications campaign for symptom-free testing is ongoing 
and responding to regular changes to the testing streams with new assets and 
channels.  
 
 

Page 26



 

Global Social Media Award for Surrey County Council Communications and 
Air Social 
 
Surrey County Council’s communications team along with Air Social, our social 
media agency, has been named one of the top agencies in the world for its use of 
social media.   
 
The team were crowned winners of the Best Use of Facebook category at the 
Global Social Media Awards 2021, which took place virtually on 25 March 2021.   
  

3. Recommendations 

 
For Board members to take note of the activity outlined above.  
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Surrey Local Outbreak Engagement Board  
 

1. Reference Information 

 

Paper tracking information 

Title: COVID-19 Local Outbreak Control Plan Update 

Author: 

Lisa Harvey-Vince, Senior Public Health Lead (SCC) 
07814 281464 
lisa.harveyvince@surreycc.gov.uk 
 

Sponsors: 
Mrs Sinead Mooney - LOEB Chairman (SCC) 
Joanna Killian - Chief Executive of Surrey County Council 
Ruth Hutchinson - Director of Public Health (SCC) 

Paper date: 15 April 2021 

Related papers Surrey Local Outbreak Control Plan 

 
2. Executive summary 

 
The national NHS Test and Trace Service was established in May 2020 in order to 
control the rate of reproduction of COVID-19 by reducing the spread of the infection.  
Public Health teams and partners are responsible for the development and delivery 
of Local Outbreak Control Plan. This plan is designed to clarify how local 
government works with the national Test and Trace service, so that the whole local 
system works to contain the virus. In Surrey, delivery of the Local Outbreak Control 
Plan commenced at the beginning of July 2020. This report details progress on the 
plan including key outcomes and milestones to date, challenges and next steps 
going forward. 
 

3. Recommendations 

 To note the report. 

 To continue to provide political oversight of local delivery of the Local 
Outbreak Control Plan. 

 To continue to lead the engagement with local communities and be the public 
face of the local response. 

 Members to ensure appropriate information on the programme and on 
COVID-19 in Surrey is cascaded within their own organisations and areas of 
influence. 

 
4. Reason for Recommendations 

 The recommendations reflect the functions of the LOEB as set out in the Terms 
of Reference. 

 
  

Page 29

Item 7

mailto:lisa.harveyvince@surreycc.gov.uk
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/coronavirus/alert-levels-and-local-outbreak-plan
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/coronavirus/alert-levels-and-local-outbreak-plan


 

5. Detail 

 
National Easing of Restrictions in England 
On 22 February 2021 the Government published a four-step plan setting out the 

roadmap for easing restrictions and exiting England’s third national lockdown - 

COVID-19 Response – Spring 2021. On 29 March 2021 the ‘Stay at Home’ rule 

ended in England and now up to 6 people or 2 households can meet outside. On 31 

March 2021 shielding for those in the clinically extremely vulnerable group ended.  

On 12 April 2021 it is anticipated that we will move to step 2 of the roadmap, when 

non-essential retail, personal care services, public buildings, most outdoor 

attractions, self-contained accommodation, and hospitality venues for service 

outdoors only, will re-open. The current COVID-19 restrictions are available here. 

 
Local Outbreak Control Plan 
On 18 March 2021, the COVID-19 Contain Framework- a guide for local decision 
makers was updated and all local authorities were asked to update Local Outbreak 
Control Plans. Surrey’s plan has been updated to reflect the new roadmap for easing 
lifting restrictions, the contain framework, and recent operational developments. The 
latest plan was re-published on 30 March 2021 and is available here. Developments 
and progress on delivery across key workstreams is outlined below: 
 
 
Contact Tracing update 
Since the successful participation in the National Hot Spot Pilot, Surrey has been 
completing all of the contact tracing for cases since 15 March. Between the 15 and 26 
March 94.76% of cases were completed. This compares with 89.02% of cases that 
were being completed in Surrey by the national and local contact tracing teams before 
the pilot started. These early results show a 5.73% increase in the number of cases 
completed when all contact tracing of cases is completed by Surrey. 
 
The local service is developing face to face contact tracing by Environmental Health 
teams in the near future. This will enable the service to contact those people we are 
unable to reach by phone.  
 
 
Testing update 
Full details on COVID testing in Surrey are available here. 
 
Symptomatic testing 
A range of testing for symptomatic individuals continues to be accessible including 
regional drive-through test sites in Guildford, Chessington, Gatwick, Heathrow and 
Twickenham and local test sites in areas of greater population density offering 
cycle/walk-in testing.  
 
Children’s care homes can bulk order 10 PCR kits every 21 days to be used on staff 
and residents when symptomatic in case they cannot access a PCR test through the 
online portal or 119. 
  

Page 30

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/963491/COVID-19_Response_-_Spring_2021.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/covid-19-coronavirus-restrictions-what-you-can-and-cannot-do?priority-taxon=774cee22-d896-44c1-a611-e3109cce8eae
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/containing-and-managing-local-coronavirus-covid-19-outbreaks/covid-19-contain-framework-a-guide-for-local-decision-makers
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/containing-and-managing-local-coronavirus-covid-19-outbreaks/covid-19-contain-framework-a-guide-for-local-decision-makers
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/coronavirus/alert-levels-and-local-outbreak-plan
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/coronavirus/testing


 

GPs can also order stocks of PCR tests for testing symptomatic patients. GPs can 
use their discretion to offer the swabs where they deem it to be clinically appropriate 
in order to streamline patient care and/or increase improve access to testing for 
patients who would otherwise be unlikely to get a test via the primary testing routes.  
This might be due to barriers around language, distance, disability, or digital 
inclusion. These PCR testing kits are also available to symptomatic general practice 
staff and their symptomatic household members.  
 
 
Targeted Community Testing (Asymptomatic Testing) 
Local authority led targeted community testing using lateral flow devices (LFDs) is 
currently available on site to anyone aged over 16 who lives or works in Surrey. 
There are currently four larger asymptomatic test sites in Spelthorne, Epsom & 
Ewell, Woking and Redhill and an additional 25 pharmacies across the county 
offering this testing. The Surrey Testing Cell is exploring the setup of further local 
authority led testing sites and collection of self-test LFD kits, and a mobile testing 
solution to increase access to testing for hard to reach and vulnerable population 
groups. 
 
Individuals aged over 18 in the same household, childcare bubble or support bubble 
as a pupil, student or staff member of a school, nursery or college and in 
occupations related to schools, nurseries or colleges can collect self-test LFD kits 
from selected NHS Test & Trace test sites or order self-test LFD kits to be delivered 
to their home. As lockdown and relevant national restrictions are eased, collection of 
self-test LFD kits will expand to focus on other groups of people, in accordance with 
the timetable set out in the national roadmap. 
 
There are multiple nationally led asymptomatic testing streams that provide LFD 
regular testing in various settings, such as educational settings, care settings, and 
NHS settings with testing kits provided by NHS Test & Trace directly to these 
settings. As of 30 March 2021, the government has reintroduced PCR testing for 
positive LFD test results in England to confirm the result of the rapid LFD tests.   
 
Surge Testing 
The Surrey Local Resilience Forum (SLRF) has completed surge testing, also known 
as localised testing, in two areas of Woking and Egham in Runnymede. These have 
been surveillance exercises in response to notification that a different variant of 
COVID-19 which originated in South Africa had been identified from positive tests 
case in these areas.  
 
 
Vaccination Programme Roll-out 
 
Surrey Heartlands Vaccination Programme 
Surrey Heartlands now has a total of 16 local vaccination sites, one vaccination 
centre at Epsom racecourse, and 11 community pharmacies across the geography 
and three Hospital Hubs. In addition to 'fixed' sites, local Primary Care and 
Community based colleagues have also been visiting care homes and those who are 
housebound to ensure they receive their vaccination.    
  

Page 31

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-reintroduces-confirmatory-pcr-testing


 

In total and to date 519,068 vaccinations have been delivered to the residents of 
Surrey including Health and Social Care Workers. Delivery of vaccinations has been 
done in accordance with The Joint Committee on Vaccination and Immunisation 
(JCVI) priority cohorts and Surrey Heartlands is on track to have offered all those in 
JCVI cohorts 1 - 9.  These cohorts are:- all residents in a care home for older adults 
and their carers; frontline health and social care workers; residential care workers; all 
those over the age of 80+, 75 to 79, 70 to 74, 65 to 69, 60 to 64, 55 to 59, 50 to 54 
years of age and clinically extremely vulnerable individuals.  Planning is now 
underway to vaccinate cohorts 10 (people who are 40 to 49 years of age). NHS 
England (NHSE) will confirm the date when vaccinations will commence for cohort 
10.  
  
Detail on daily and weekly uptake of vaccinations can be found here.    
  

Community (COVID) Champions  
The Community (COVID) Champions programme has continued to develop with 
Public Health successfully engaging eight out of eleven boroughs and districts. The 
role of Community COVID Champions is to share information on COVID provided by 
Public Health among their local communities.  Recent progress includes:  
 

 25 March 2021 was the busiest day yet for the programme, with four online 
meetings in one day at Reigate & Banstead, Spelthorne, Surrey Heath and a 
launch at Runnymede. This means six districts and boroughs are now holding 
regular, well-attended online meetings with excellent engagement from across 
the community. Mole Valley are next to launch an online meeting on 28 April 
2021 with presentations from their Chief Executive and the CCG  

 Nine of the districts and boroughs now receive the weekly e-briefing and work 
is underway to engage the last remaining two, Tandridge and Woking, as well 
as to support Waverley and Guildford in launching fully. The briefing covers 
local/ national data and guidance, testing and vaccinations, reducing health 
inequalities, and COVID-related public health topics 

 Contain Outbreak Management Funds (COMF) funds have been secured to 
extend the programme across communities working with voluntary sector 
organisations, with a view to further increasing the diversity of Champions 
across ethnicity, culture, faith, age, etc to strengthen the programme’s ability 
to address health inequalities  

 External stakeholder engagement is going well, with the programme now 
connected into both Surrey Heartlands CCG and Frimley ICG 
communications teams, plus the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 
Government’s national Community Champions workstream 

 
 
Minority Ethnic and Faith Communities – COVID-19 Vaccinations 
Consistent with national trends, the Black African communities in Surrey have 
expressed the lowest vaccine confidence and subsequent vaccination uptake. 
Pakistani, Bangladeshi and Gypsy, Roma Traveller communities are also less 
confident and have lower uptake in comparison to the white population. The findings 
of the BAME Rapid Needs Assessment highlighted the importance of and mechanisms 
for ongoing engagement and building trust, this has informed the work of the Equality 

Page 32

https://www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/statistical-work-areas/covid-19-vaccinations/


 

and Inclusion Group for the vaccination programme. Working with SMEF, BAME 
forums and community leaders, Faith Leaders and the GRT community has enabled 
an understanding of the challenges to convenience of access to, and confidence in 
the vaccination. These challenges have been reviewed using a behavioural insights 
framework and co-production model which has informed key initiatives to support 
increase in uptake. These initiatives have included roving outreach delivery models, 
co-designed training and community led myth busting communications.   
 
 
Enforcement update - provided by Surrey Police: 
 

Operation Apollo 

Surrey Police’s continued response to the 

Coronavirus Pandemic 
 

Operation Apollo is the name given to Surrey Police’s co-ordinated response to the 

coronavirus pandemic. 

The dedicated Operation Apollo daily Covid police resources which commenced in 

November 2020, continue to operate using the 4E’s policing approach; in order to 

prevent the further spread of Covid-19.   

 Engaging with the public, 

 Explaining the rules that the government has put in place and what they mean 

for the public, 

 Encouraging the public to follow the rules and then 

 Enforcing the rules by means of issuing a Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN) when 

and where the public have then subsequently not complied. 

When events are expected to see higher levels of breaching (including the Easter 

weekend); additional resources have been put in place, to be able to deal with these 

and deter any further breaches.   

The dedicated resource has consisted of 1 Police Sergeant and 6 Police Officers 

working a daily 8 hour late turn shift, dealing with actionable grade 3 (non-urgent) 

calls coming into the force along with border force referrals, which is where border 

force have not been able to confirm travellers into the country are isolating and the 

Police are required to attend and ensure compliance with the regulations.   

The units also conduct regular patrols checking in with the vaccination centres and 

via high visibility foot and vehicle patrols in areas identified as hotspots. These are 

locations popular within the communities for groups and as a result likely to be 

Page 33



 

subject to Covid breaches.  They include skate parks, beauty spots, shops and 

public houses.  These are completed to provide reassurance within communities and 

support businesses, encouraging compliance and dealing with any non-compliance 

issues.  

Over the Easter period, an additional 2 Police Officers per division will be working a 

daily 8 hour earlier shift; covering the four days which equates to an additional 22 

Police Officers per day.   

Surrey Police were initially issued with a Surge Fund of £388,264 by the Home 

Office to help fund the additional work required to enforce Covid Regulations when 

the second lockdown was brought in.  With the Governments extension of the ability 

to enforce regulations until September 2021; an additional £750,644 has been 

provided to Surrey Police to ensure the continued enforcement of any that are in 

place. 

Enforcement in Numbers 

Since the beginning of Operation Apollo, One £10,000 FPN was issued in January 

for a large party for a wedding within the Reigate and Banstead borough, which was 

in breach of the rules. 

There have been three summons of further £10,000 FPNs; 

 One for organising a funeral for more than 30 people in Staines during 

November. 

 One for holding/participating in a gathering of more than 30 people in a private 

dwelling in Cobham during December. 

 One for organising a funeral for more than 30 people in Epsom during 

February. 

A total of 13,313 Covid-related incidents have been reported into Surrey Police since 

20th March with 3,106 of the incidents being reported during the recent lockdown 

since 4th January.   

1,542 FPNs have been given since 23rd March 2020.  1,016 FPNs have been issued 

since the start of the most recent lockdown from 4th January (52 were in the last 7 

days), for each of the following offences: 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



 

Offence Heading Number 

During self-isolation period leave / be outside of place where self-isolating (International travel) 1 

International Travel - During self-isolation period in England leave / be outside of place 1 

Self-Isolation - Following positive coronavirus test fail to comply with self-isolation requirements 3 

Self-Isolation - Worker fail to notify employer of requirement to self-isolate 1 

Tier 4 Offence - Fail to cease carrying on business / service not permitted to be open in Tier 4 area 2 

Tier 4 Offence - Fail to close restricted business / service in Tier 4 area providing food / drink f 1 

Tier 4 Offence - Participate in gathering of more than two people in public outdoor place in Tier 4  93 

Tier 4 Offence - Participate in gathering of two or more people in other outdoor place in Tier 4 area 41 

Tier 4 Offence - Participate in gathering of two or more people in private dwelling / indoors in Tier 301 

Tier 4 Offence - Person living in Tier 4 area, leave / were outside of place where living, without 
reason 

450 

Tier 4 Offence - Person from Tier 4 area participate in gathering of two or more people in other 
public place 

26 

Tier 4 Offence - Person living in Tier 4 area participate in indoor gathering of two or more people  33 

Tier 4 Offence - Person living in Tier 4 area participate in gathering of more than two people in 
public place 

8 

Tier Offence - Obstruct person carrying out a function under the coronavirus regulations 4 

Tier Offence - Contravene a direction/ fail to comply with a requirement given by relevant person  30 

Tier Offence - Fail to comply with reasonable instruction/prohibition notice given by a relevant 

person 
6 

Face Coverings - Enter/remain in relevant place in England without wearing a face covering 6 

Face Coverings - Being responsible for child contravened direction given to wear face covering  3 

Self-Isolation - Contravene requirement given by relevant person under self-isolation regulations 2 

Self-Isolation - Person come into contact with other person/group during period of self-isolation 2 

International Travel - Person arriving in England from non-exempt country or territory fail to self- 

isolate 
2 

Total 1,016 

 
 
Adult Social Care (ASC) update - provided by the Deputy Director – Adult Social Care 
(SCC): 

 
Care Homes 

Across a combination of SCC goodwill grants, Infection Control Fund rounds 1 and 
2, and the Rapid Testing Fund in 2020/2021 care homes in Surrey have received 
over £32m of additional funding from the Council to support them with additional 
costs and financial pressures incurred during the pandemic. 
 
The government has recently announced there will be an Infection Control Fund 
round 3 which will provide further financial support in 2021/2022. We are currently 
awaiting guidance from the DHSC on the rules but we understand this will cover the 
period April 2021 to June 2021.  
 
If people have returned home to self-isolate with their families (e.g. people with LD) 
then ASC has continued to pay the care home at the normal fee to retain the 
placement for the individual and support the care provider financially. 
 

Page 35



 

The majority of SCC placements in care homes will also benefit from a 2% fee uplift 
from 1st April subject to the rules about how it is being applied.  
 
ASC alongside public health and NHS colleagues continues to provide targeted 
follow up support through the work of the Quality Assurance team and IPC nurses 
where there may be concerns for example around vaccination uptake, staffing, 
outbreaks, or other service delivery matters.  
 
Overall the position is improving within care home settings, data regarding care 
homes for the week ending 26 March is set out below. 

 Care Home Infection Rate for residents is currently 1% 

 Covid Immunisation in Care Homes – 93% of residents immunised with first 
dose 

 Flu Immunisation in Care Homes – 85% of residents immunised 
 

Winter Pressures 

ASC continues to monitor the potential impacts of seasonal pressures although this 
year the demands have mainly been as a result of the pandemic.  ASC has been 
supporting the NHS both at a system and local level, teams continue to work with 
NHS colleagues to support the flow out of Surrey hospitals.  Members of the Adults 
Leadership Team are actively working to support the system in a rapidly changing 
and demanding environment with a current focus supporting the NHS over the 
Easter period and with recovery work. 
 
Mental Health 

The mental health system is continuing to experience significant pressures, factors 

such as employment and financial insecurities and isolation are likely to have a 

further negative impact on Surrey residents in terms of their mental health and 

wellbeing.  There is an increase in the number of people presenting in a crisis who 

were not known to services before.  There has been an increase in the use of 

emergency powers under the Mental Health Act, with s135/s136 activity 30% higher 

than 2019 and a higher percentage of those people assessed requiring admission. 

The increase in referrals to ASC is illustrated below, the orange bars represent the 

increase in people needing further action following initial contact rather than 

signposting, information and advice as represented by the blue bars and we continue 

to see an increase in the numbers of people coming through the ASC MH locality 

teams, there has been a 61% increase in cases open on LAS since October 2019. 

 
 
 

Page 36



 

 
The tables below show the number of mental health act assessments completed by 

the AMHP teams from 2019 to 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37



 

The ASC teams work closely with the Surrey and Borders Partnership Trust to 

support hospital discharges and prevent admissions.  ASC is attending the Surrey 

Heartlands Mental Health emergency response meetings and are jointly leading on 

the accommodation and hospital flow workstreams.   

 
Children, Families and Lifelong Learning update - provided by the Executive 

Director for Children, Families and Lifelong Learning (SCC): 

 

Service Improvement 

Despite the impact of the pandemic, the Council continues to progress its service 

improvements across children’s services. Following positive feedback from the 

Department of Education and NHS England in January 2021 in which they confirmed 

“it is the view of the Department and NHS England that you have demonstrated clear 

and sustained progress. This means that we no longer need to continue any formal 

monitoring such as a monthly progress review.” we received similar confirmation 

from the Youth Justice Board in March that we have made “effective and sustained” 

progress in this area too, and that as a result they have formally de-escalated Surrey 

from YJB priority status. More recently Ofsted carried out a focused visit into the 

quality of our support for vulnerable children and families during the pandemic. The 

report from this visit is due to be published in May. 

Wider impact on educational settings 

Children returned to school on 8 March, with the exception of a very few children that 

remain required to shield until 31 March 2021. The DfE have introduced additional 

guidance to the sector that extends the protective measures and resources available 

to secondary schools, colleges, and families of all school age children.  

On return, secondary and college students have been offered twice weekly 

asymptomatic testing; the first 3 tests were carried out on site and students are now 

testing twice a week at home (schools supply home tests for students and staff).  In 

addition, secondary and college age students are asked to wear a face covering in 

most classrooms if social distancing cannot be maintained, this is subject to review 

at the end of the spring term. 

To reduce transmission, households and childcare of all school age children and 

college students are able to access twice weekly asymptomatic testing via an 

asymptomatic testing centre or by online ordering. Children and families with COVID 

19 symptoms are advised not to use Lateral Flow Device (asymptomatic rapid tests) 

tests but continue to arrange a PCR test online. 

Remote learning remains in place in response to any outbreaks or individual children 

that are required to isolate. 

 

 

 

Page 38



 

Family Economic Hardship 

Financial hardship has seen a marked shift during the pandemic in Surrey, as 

elsewhere in the UK.  Recent survey data from residents demonstrates clearly that 

the pandemic has exacerbated existing financial difficulties and caused more 

families to fall into financial distress, with 36% of residents surveyed reporting that 

the pandemic had caused a negative impact on their financial circumstances.   

Economic strain was certainly heightened for parents of school-aged children, and 

our internal modelling suggests that there will be a 20% increase in uptake in 

children eligible for free school meals. The sudden switch to online classes and 

homework placed a financial burden on struggling families as schools require 

technological devices that many families do not have. Taking all of this into account, 

49% of households with children said the pandemic has been entirely negative to 

their children’s education. 

Surrey County Council is supporting families alongside our network of third sector 

partners (Homestart, the YMCA and EIKON), with programmes including the Surrey 

Crisis Fund, Family Centres, the Family Support Programme, and Funded Early 

Education for two-year-olds (FEET Funding). In addition, given a 122% increase in 

food parcel distribution for families at food banks last year, our Winter Support Grant 

funding has been helping over 120,000 people (an estimated 70% of which are 

children) through 18 food banks since December 2020. 

 

Crisis in CAMHS / Mental Health contract 

Both nationally and locally, more children and young people (CYP) have been 

reaching out to the crisis services. As well as numbers rapidly increasing, the 

complexity and severity of needs is also much greater and more CYP require more 

intensive support and treatment. CAMHS crisis services have continued to support the 

most vulnerable and high-risk children aiming to minimise the number of young people 

attending A&E. There has been an increase in virtual solutions to engage with families 

and virtual assessments in each District General Hospital Paediatric A&E and 

Paediatric Wards. There is now a dedicated 24/7 crisis line available in Surrey, and 

from May further improvements will result in a single, separate telephone number for 

crisis advice for CYP. Full details of intensive support, home treatment is available on 

the SABP website. 

As children and young people have returned to schools, information for staff and 

parents / carers has been distributed through the school bulletin as well as published 

on local websites. This information ensures families know how to access the right 

advice, guidance, and support at the right time. A guide has been distributed 

summarising the key resources available to help maintain children’s wellbeing, 

address any emotional needs and sign post to services and  Children's mental health 

and wellbeing - Healthy Surrey have kept up to date information. 

The Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health contract has been awarded to an Alliance 

Partnership which includes: The Surrey Wellbeing Partnership, Learning Space, 

National Autism Society, Barnardo’s and Tavistock and Portland and Surrey and 

Page 39

https://www.healthysurrey.org.uk/children-and-families/childrens-mental-health-and-wellbeing
https://www.healthysurrey.org.uk/children-and-families/childrens-mental-health-and-wellbeing


 

Borders Partnership (SABP). The way children’s emotional wellbeing and mental 

health services in Surrey are delivered is being transformed by this alliance of 

organisations who will work together to provide the appropriate level of support at the 

right time, alongside key stakeholders. 

In order to ensure the new contract gets off to a good start, a backlog of over 1500 

cases waiting for ASD assessments, has been tackled through a programme of 

remedial action. Since December 2020 the number of children waiting to join the 

pathway has fallen from 1,512 to 69.   

The transformation will introduce a new approach where children and young people 

will have a central voice in decisions about their care and improving self-identified 

outcomes. There will be a greater emphasis on addressing and meeting needs, 

rather than getting a diagnosis as a trigger for help and support. This framework for 

change is the IThrive model which conceptualises need in five categories or needs 

based groups: Thriving, Getting Advice, Getting Help, Getting More Help and Getting 

Risk Support.  

 
6. Challenges 

The following areas have been identified as key challenges which are summarised 
below. These are documented within the risk register: 

 New variants of COVID pose a threat to the system by potentially placing 
extra demand on capacity and may require re-direction of resources impacting 
Public Health planning/response to pressure on wider system and incident 
management and control. 

 There is an ongoing risk relating to capacity – for example within the Public 
Health Intelligence and Insight Team due the volume of data analysis required 
for COVID data monitoring, surveillance and reporting.   

 There are several risks associated with establishing Locally Supported 
Contact Tracing. A separate risk log has been developed which identifies 
these risks and any mitigating actions. 
 

7. Timescale and delivery plan 

 Delivery of the Local Outbreak Control Plan is ongoing and will be required 
throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
8. How is this being communicated? 

 The communications strategy to support the Local Outbreak Control Plan is 
led by Surrey County Council Communications and Engagement Department 
in conjunction with system partners in the MIG (Local Resilience Forum Multi 
Information Group).  

 A plan for ongoing communications for all Surrey residents, as well as 
focused communications during outbreaks, is in place. In addition, the 
process for notifying partners as per the Escalation Framework 
(internal/external) is outlined in the Communications Plan/Protocol. 

 

Page 40



 

9. Next steps 

 
Next steps include: 

 Continue to review and update the Local Outbreak Control Plan on a monthly 
basis. 

 Continue to monitor COVID-19 data and surveillance daily.  

 Continue to drive delivery of the Local Outbreak Control Plan through the 
COVID Management Group. 

 Adapting any local protocols that support the high-risk settings in the Local 
Outbreak Control Plan to reflect new national guidance and learning. 

 Continue to assess risks and implement mitigating actions. 

 Continue to monitor the capacity and budget as the external environment 
changes e.g. changing COVID situation, national policy changes, etc. 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 18 FEBRUARY 2021
	Item 2 - Annex A - Public Questions and Responses - 18 February 2021

	6 COVID-19 COMMUNICATIONS PLAN UPDATE
	7 COVID-19 LOCAL OUTBREAK CONTROL PLAN UPDATE

